The Bihar Self-Supporting Cooperative Societies Act, 1996 Chapter- I Introduction **Sections** Page No. 1. Short title, extent and commencement 2. **Definitions** Chapter- II Cooperative Principles Organisations which may be registered 3. 4. Organisations which way be registered 5. Application for registration Cooperative Society to be a body corporate 6. Display of name 7. Appointment of registrar Chapter- III Bye- laws 9. Bye- Laws 10. Amendment of bye-laws 11. Change of liability, transfer of assets and liabilities, division and amalgamation 12. Promotion of subsidiatry organisation 13. Creation of new organization with others **Chapter- IV** Union & Federation 14. Cooperative Union / Federations Chapter- V Management of Funds 15. Mobilisation of funds 16. Restriction on borrowings 17. Restriction on holding of equity 18. Disposal of surplus 19. Management of Deficit 20. Reserve and other funds 21. Investment of funds outside the business 22. Restriction on Contribution Chapter- VI Managemet 23. Membership 24. Restriction on services to non-members

- 25. General Body
- 26. Board
- 27. Powers and functions of the board
- 28. Term of office
- 29. Elections
- 30. Meetings
- 31. Staff

Chapter- VII

Information

- 32. Accounts and records to be maintained
- 33. Audit
- 34. Special Audit
- 35. Filing of returns
- 36. Enquiry

- 37. Power to summon and examine persons and documents
- 38. Action on special Audit or enquiry Report

Chapter- VIII

Settlement of desputes

- 39. Constitution of Cooperative Tribunals
- 40. Settlement of disputes
- 41. Power of the Tribunal to order recovery

Chapter-IX

Offences & Penalties

42. Offences and Penalties

Chapter-X

Dissolution

- 43. Dissolution of Member
- 44. Dissolution of Tribunal
- 45. Appointment of liquidator
- 46. Duties of liquidator
- 47. Powers of liquidator
- 47. Final Account

Chapter-XI

Miscellalneous

- 49. Fee for services
- 50. Bar of jurisdiction
- 51. Rules
- 52. Removal of difficulty
 - * State Govt. decisions

THE BIHAR SELF-SUPPORTING COOPERATIVE SOCIETIES ACT, 1996 (No. 2 of 1997)

An Act to provide for the voluntary formation of Cooperative Societies as Accountable, Competitive, self-reliant business enterprises, based on thrift, Self- help and mutual aid and owned, managed and controlled by members for their economic and social betterment and for the matters connected therewith or incidental thereto;

Be it enacted by the legislature of the State of Bihar in the Forty-Seventh year of the Republic of India as follows:-

[उद्देश्य एवं हेतु :— सहाकारी समितियों को सामाजिक, आर्थिक विकास का प्रभावी विकास का साधन बनाने की दृष्टि से देश में सहकारी आन्दोलन की विद्यमान स्थिति की पृष्ठ भूमि में योजना आयोग द्वारा एक आदर्श सहकारिता अधिनियम को प्रारूपित कियागया है। आदर्श सहकारिता अधिनियम का दृष्टिकोण है सहकारी समितियों को एक असली स्वरूप प्रदान करना, एकीकृत सहकारी ढाँचे के निर्माण सुकर बनाना तािक एक सहकारी पद्धित विकसित हो, विभिन्न स्तरों के परिसंधीय संगठनों को उनके सदस्यों के प्रति अधिक अनुक्रियाशील और जिम्मेदार बनाना तािक सरकारी नियंत्रण और हस्तक्षेप कम से कम हो, जिससे कि सहयोगकत्ता और सहकारी समितियाँ निर्णय करने की शक्ति सहितनिर्भरता और आत्मविश्वास विकसित करने में और राजनीतिकरण को उन्मूलित करने में समर्थ हो।

25—26 जुलाई, 1992 को नई दिल्ली में आयोजित राज्यों के सहकारिता मंत्रियों के सम्मेलन में यह निर्णय लिया गया कि राज्य में विद्यमान परिस्थतियों के अनुसार विभिन्न राज्यों में आदर्श सहकारिता अधिनिरयम को अंगीकार किया जाय।

पूर्वोक्त तथ्यों को ध्यान में रखते हुए सरकार ने निर्णय लिया है कि आदर्श सहकारिता अधिनियम को कतिपय संशोधनों के साथ एक अतिरिक्त अधिनियम के रूप मं अंगीकार किया जाय।

CHAPTER - I

- 1. Short title, extent and commencement.- (1) This Act may be called the Bihar Self-Supporting Cooperative Societies Act, 1996.
 - (2) It extends to the whole of the State of Bihar.
 - (3) It Shall come into force at once.
 - 2. Definitions. in this Act, unless the context otherwise requires –
 - (a) "State" means the State of Bihar:
 - (b) "Board" means the Board of Directors of a Cooperative Society;
 - (c) "By-laws" means the bye-laws of a registered Cooperative Society;
 - (d) "Chief executive" means an individual who, subject to the superintendence, control and direction of the board, has been entrusted with the management of the affairs of a Cooperative Society;
 - (e) "Cooperative society" means an organization registered of deened to be registered under this Act;
 - (f) "Cooperative basis" means the Cooperative principles enumerated in section 3 of this Act;
 - (g) "Primary Cooperative Society" means a Cooperative Society whose member is not a Cooperative Society;
 - (h) "Central Cooperative" means a Cooperative Society which is different from Federation and Union and which has any other Cooperative Society, and , if the bye-laws so provide, individuals as its members;
 - (i) "Federation" means a Federation constituted under sub-section (2) of section 14 of this Act;

- (j) "Union" means an Union constituted under sub-section (1) of section 14 of this Act:
- (k) "General body" means-
 - (i) in relation to Primary Cooperative Society, all the members of that Cooperative Society;
 - (ii) in relation to a Central Cooperative Society, delegates of all the member Cooperative Societies, and, if the bye-laws so provide, individuals as its members:
 - (iii) in relation to a Federation the delegates of all member, Cooperative Societies:
 - (iv) in relation to the Union, the delegates of all the member Cooperative Federations and Cooperative Societies;
- (I) "General meeting" means a meeting of the general body of a Cooperative Society registered under this Act;
- (m) "Office-bearer" means a person elected or appointed by a Cooperative Society to any office of such Cooperative Society;
- (n) "Registrar" means the Registrar of Self-Supporting Cooperative Societies appointed under Section 8 of this Act and includes any other person on whom all of any of the powers of the Registrar under this Act are conferred;
- ¹[o] "family" means husband, wife, their unmarried daughters and dependent and dependent sons;
- (p) "cooperative tribunal" means a tribunal constituted under section 39 this Act.

CHAPTER –II COOPERATIVE PRINCIPLES

- 3. **Cooperative Principles.-** Individuals or Cooperative Societies intending to form a Cooperative Society under this Act shall frame bye-laws conforming to the following Principles of Cooperation, namely-
 - (a) membership of a Cooperative Society shall be voluntary available without restriction of any social, political, racial or religious discrimination, of all persons who can make use of its services and are willing to accept the responsibilities of membership;
 - (b) Cooperative Societies are democratic organization; their affairs shall be administered by persons elected or appointed in a manner agreed to by the members and accountable to them, Members of Cooperative Societies shall enjoy equal rights of voting (one member one vote) and participation in decisions affecting the Cooperative Societies of which they are members;
 - (c) the economic results, arising out of the operations of a Cooperative Society belong to the members of that Cooperative Society and shall distributed in such a manner as would avoid on member gaining at the expense of others, which shall be achieved-
 - (i) by provision for development of the business of the Cooperative Society,
 - (ii) by provision of common services, or
 - (iii) by distribution among the members in proportion to their transactions with the Cooperative Society in addition to the distribution of dividend to the share-holders;
 - (d) all Cooperative Societies shall make provision for the education of their members, office-bearers and employees and of the general public, in the principles and techniques of Cooperative, both economic and democratic;
 - (e) all cooperative societies, in order to best serve the interest of their members and their communities, shall actively cooperate in every practical way with

other cooperatives at local, national and international levels having as therein the achievement of unity of action by cooperators throughout the world.

4. Organisations which may be registered. – Only such an organization may be registered as a Cooperative Society under this Act which provide in its byelaws for the Social and economic betterment of its members through self-help and mutual air in accordance with the cooperative principles;

Provide that the membership of such Cooperative Societies which enjoy special privileges under government policy and programmes by virtue of their membership being confined to special groups shall be restricted to members belonging to such special groups.

- 1. Subs. By (Amdt.) Act 9 of 2002
- **5. Application for registration.** (1) (i) Where not less than ten individuals each being a member of a different family intend to form a cooperative Society, they, after framing bye-laws for this purpose on the basis of section 3 and in accordance with section 9, may apply for registration under this Act.
- (ii) Where two or more Cooperative Societies registered under this Act intend to form a central Co-operative Society, they after framing bye-laws for this purpose on the basis of section 3 and in accordance with section 9, may apply for registration under this Act.
- (iii) Where two of more Cooperative Societies registered under this Act intend to form a Cooperative Federation, they after framing bye-laws for this purpose on the basis of section 3 and in accordance with section 9, may apply for registration under this Act.
- (iv) Where two of more Cooperative Federation and such Cooperative Societies as are not the members of any Cooperative Federation, intend to form Cooperative union, they after framing bye-laws for this purpose on the basis of section 3 and in, accordance with section 9, may apply for registration under this Act.
- (v) Where a society registered under section 11 of the Bihar Cooperative societies Act, 1935 intend to convert itself into a Cooperative Society under this Act, it after framing bye-laws for this purpose on the basis of section 3 and accordance with section 9, may apply for registration under this Act.
- ¹ ["(VI) Where State Government so decides to convert any class of Cooperative Societies registered under section 11 of Bihar Cooperative Societies Act, 1935 into a class of societies under this Act it shall within the period stipulated by the State Government, apply for registration under this Act after framing its byelaws for this purpose on the basis of section 3 and in accordance with section 9 of this act"
 - (2) An application for registration shall be submitted to the Registrar.
 - (3) Every such application shall be accompanied by -
 - (a) two copied of the proposed bye-laws of the Cooperative society as adopted by the promotion members;
 - (b) a list of names of members with their addresses, occupation and equity participation;
 - (c) the list of members of the first board elected by the promotion members;
 - (d) a true copy of the minutes of the meeting at which the bye-laws were adopted, duly signed by the chairperson;
 - (e) In the case of a Society registered under section 11 of the Bihar Cooperative societies Act, 1935 and wishing to convert itself into a Cooperative Society under this Act evidence to show that the Society in not in possession of any share capital from government, and evidence also to show that the society in not in receipt of any government loans or guarantees at the time of applying for registration as a Cooperative Society under this Act or that it has been entered into a memorandum of understanding with the government for any such outstanding loans of guarantees; and

- (f) registration fee amounting to one per cent of the total authorized share capital by whatever mane called subject to minimum of one hundred rupees and a maximum of ten thousand rupees.
- 1. Added by (Amdt.) Act 9 of 2002
 - (4) The Registrar shall, if he is satisfied that -
 - (a) the application is in conformity with the requirement of this Act; and
 - (b) the proposed bye-laws are not contrary to the provisions of this Act register the Cooperative Society and also its bye-laws and communicate a certificate of registration and the original of the registered bye-laws signed and sealed by him within a period of ninety days from the date of submission of application, to the Chief promoter mentioned in the application.
- (5) If the conditions laid down in sub-section (4) are not fulfilled, the Registrar shall communicate the order of refusal together with the reasons thereof, within ninety days from the date of submission of application, to the Chief Promoter. In case no refusal in communicated within the said period, the Cooperative Society shall be deemed to be registered and in that event to Registrar shall send a certificate of deemed registration and the original copy of deemed registered bye-laws signed and sealed by him within a period of one month.
- (6) Where an order of refusal in received by the applicants under sub-section within the prescribed period, they may appeal against this to the Cooperative Tribunal within sixty days of communication of such order or within sixty days of communication of such order or within sixty days of the period prescribed for the communication of the certificate of deemed registration. The decision of the Tribunal shall be final in this regard.
- (7) Where a Cooperative Society is registered, the certificate of registration signed and sealed by the Registrar shall be conclusive evidence:

Provided that where a Cooperative Society was earlier registered under the Bihar Cooperative Societies Act, 1935, such registration shall be deemed to be cancelled once a certificate of registration under this section is issued.

- **6.** Cooperative Society to be a body corporate.- (1) The Cooperative Society shall be a body corporate by the name under which it is registered having perpetual succession and a common seal. The Cooperative Society shall be entitled to acquire, hold and dispose of property, to enter into contracts on its behalf, to institute and defend suits and other legal proceedings and to take all such steps necessary to achieve its objectives.
- (2) All transactions entered into good faith prior to registration, in furtherance of the purposes of the Cooperative Society shall be deemed to be transactions of the Cooperative Society after registration.
- (3) A Cooperative Society may be registered with Limited Liability and it shall have the word "Limited" as suffix to its name.
- 7. Display of name.- (1) Every Cooperative Society shall display its name and the address of its registered office and the words "registered under Bihar Self-Supporting Cooperative Societies Act, 1996" -
 - (a) at every office or place at which it carries on business;
 - (b) in all notices and other official publications;
 - (c) on all its contracts, business letters, orders for goods, invoices, statements of accounts, receipts and letters of credit; and
 - (d) on all bills of exchange, promissory notes, endorsements, cheques and others for money it signs or that are signed on its behalf.
- (2) The name of every Cooperative Society shall contain the words "Cooperative" and "Limited"
- 8. Appointment of Registrar.- (1) The State Government may appoint a person to be Registrar of Self-Supporting Cooperative Societies for the State or any portion of it, and may appoint other officers to assist such Registrar.

- (2) The State Government may, by notification, confer on such other officers appointed under sub-section (1) to assist the Registrar, all or any powers of the Registrar under this Act.
 - (3) The term of office of the Registrar shall normally be for a period of three years.

CHAPTER-III BYE-LAWS

- **9. Bye-Laws.-** (1) Except on such specific matters which the Act has provided the functioning of every Cooperative Society shall be regulated by its bye-laws subject to the provisions of this Act.
 - (2) The bye-laws of the Cooperative Society may provide for the following matters
 - (a) the name, address and area of operation of a Cooperative Society,
 - (b) the objectives of the Cooperative Society explicitly (Stated as a common central need of the members),
 - (c) the Cooperative principles as described in section 3,
 - (d) the services to be provided to its members,
 - (e) eligibility for obtaining membership,
 - (f) procedure for obtaining membership,
 - (g) conditions for continuing as member,
 - (h) the time limit before which a potential member must seek and obtain membership in order to continue to use the services of the Cooperative Society.
 - (i) procedure for withdrawal/ transfer of membership,
 - (j) procedure for termination and cessation of membership,
 - (k) rights of members,

:-

- (I) fixation of minimum performance required annually of each members vis-à-vis use of services, financial commitments and participation in meetings in order to be eligible to exercise the rights of membership including the right of vote.
- (m) the consequences of default in payment of any sum due by a member,
- (n) the nature and amount of capital, it any, of the Cooperative Society,
- (o) the maximum capital to which a single member can subscribe,
- (p) the nature and extent of the liability of the members for the debts contracted by the Cooperative Society,
- (q) the sources and types of funds to be raised by the Cooperative Society,
- (r) the purposes for which the funds may be applied,
- (s) the extent and conditions under which deposits, loans, debentures and other funds may be mobilised,
- (t) the conditions and purposes for which state aid and aid form other financial institutions may be sought and obtained,
- (u) the manner of disposal of surplus,
- (v) the constitutions of various funds, reserves and their purpose,
- (w) the manner of convening general and other special meeting and quorum thereof,
- (x) the frequency of general meetings,
- (y) the role of general body and the matters to be placed before the general body,
- (z) the manner of amending bye-laws,
- (aa) the procedure for conducting elections,
- (bb) the procedure for conducting election in case the Cooperative Society fails to do so.
- (cc) the size and constitution of the board,
- (dd) eligibility for becoming director,

- (ee) conditions for retaining directorship,
- (ff) the tenure of the directors, chairperson and other office-bearers,
- (gg) the procedure for removal of directors and for filling of vacancies,
- (hh) the manner of convening board meetings and guorum,
- (ii) the frequency of board meetings,
- (jj) powers and functions of the board,
- (kk) powers and functions of office-bearers including chair-person,
- (II) Powers and functions of the Chief-Executive,
- (mm) Penalties for acting against the interests of members and for non-fulfillment of duties by members, directors and staff,
- (nn) the appointment and role of auditor and procedure for conduct of audit where the Cooperative Society fails to make necessary arrangements and time limit for audit compliance,
- (oo) the authorisation of an officer or officers to sign documents and to institute and defend suits and other legal proceedings on behalf of the Cooperative society,
- (pp) the terms on which a Cooperative Society may deal with non-members,
- (qq) the terms on which a Cooperative Society may associate with other Cooperative Societies,
- (rr) the terms on which a Cooperative Society may deal with organizations other than Cooperative Societies,
- (ss) the rights, if any, which the Cooperative Society may confer on any Cooperative Society or other federations and the circumstances under which these rights may be exercised by the federations,
- (tt) the manner of disposal, of funds if the Cooperative Society is under liquidation,
- (uu) the accounting year for the Cooperative Society,
- (vv) transfer of shares and interest in the name of a nominee in case of death of a member,
- (ww) the manner of dissolution of the Cooperative society,
- (xx) restriction, if any, on service to non-members,
- (yy) organize self-help, groups of people living in its area to conduct education and training programme.
- (zz) Special measures for women, scheduled castes and scheduled tribes and other weaker sections including provision for their representation of the board.
- **10.** Amendment of bye-laws. (1) A Cooperative Society may amend any of the provisions of its bye-laws by a resolution of its general body, or by the representative of general body, where this exists of a majority of two-third members having voting right:

Provided that no such resolution shall be passed unless atleast twenty clear days of written notice of the meeting has been given along with a copy of the proposed amendment to each member of the general body or representative general body, as the case may be, and such notice and proposed amendment is also displayed on the notice board of the Cooperative Society for a period of twenty days immediately preceding the date of the meeting:

Provided further that the representative general body shall not alter any provision in the bye-laws relating to its own constitution and powers.

- (2) An application for the registration of the amendment shall be submitted to the Registrar within a period of thirty days from the date of resolution.
- (3) Every application submitted to the Registrar shall be signed by the chair-person and two members of the board and shall be accompanied by the following particulars:-
 - (a) a copy of the resolution adopting the amendment,
 - (b) the date of the general meeting at which the amendment was approved.
 - (c) the date of the notice issued for the general meeting

- (d) the total number of members on the rolls of the Cooperative Society having the right of vote on the date of such general meeting.
- (e) the number of members having the right of vote present at such general meeting, and
- (f) the number of members who voted for the resolution.
- (4) The Registrar, if the proposed amendment is in consonance with the provisions of the Act, shall register the amendment within a period of ninety days from the date of receipt of the application.
- (5) The Registrar shall forward to the Cooperative Society within a period of fifteen days after registration, a copy of the registered amendment together with a certificate signed and sealed by him, and such certificate shall be conclusive proof that the amendment has been duly registered.
- (6) The Registrar, if the proposed amendment is not in consonance with the provisions of the Act, Shall communicate the order of refusal together with the reasons therefore to the Cooperative Society within a period of ninety days from the date of receipt of the application:

Provide that no order refusing to register the amendment shall be passed except after giving the Cooperative Society an opportunity of making its representation.

- (7) Where no order of refusal is communicated sub-section (6) within the period specified in that sub-section, the amendment, shall be deemed to be registered, and in that event the Registrar shall send a certificate of deemed registration and the original copy of deemed registered amendment signed and sealed by him within a period of one month.
 - 11. Change of liability, transfer of assets and liabilities, division, amalgamation. -
 - (1) A Cooperative Society may, by a resolution of its general body, Change the extent of its limited liability.
 - (2) A Cooperative Society may, by a resolution of its general body transfer it assets and liabilities, in whole or in part, to any other Cooperative Society which agrees to such transfer by a resolution of its general body.
 - (3) A Cooperative Society may, by a resolution of its general body, divide itself into two or more Cooperative Societies.
 - (4) Any two or more Cooperative Societies may, by a resolution of their respective general bodies, amalgamate themselves and a new Cooperative Society.
 - (5) Every resolution of a Cooperative Society under this section shall be passed at its general meeting majority of total members with right of vote and such resolution shall contain all particulars of the liability, transfer, division, amalgamation as the case may be,
 - (6) Where a resolution is passed under this section, the Cooperative Society shall give notice thereof together with a copy of the resolution to all its members and federation to which it is affiliated and creditors who may give their consent. Notwithstanding any bye- law or contract to the contrary any member, federation or creditor shall, during a period of one month from the date of service of the notice have the option of withdrawing their shares, deposits, loans or services as the case may be.
 - (7) Any member, federation or creditor who or which does not exercise within the specified period the right under sub-section (6) shall be deemed to have assented to the resolution.
 - (8) A resolution passed by Co-operative Society under this section shall not take effect until-
 - (a) (i) all the members, federation and creditors have assented under sub-section(6) or are deemed to have assented to the resolution under sub-section (7), or

- (ii) all claims of the members, federation and creditors who have exercised the option referred under sub-section (6) within the period specified therein have been met in full or otherwise satisfied, and
- (b) (i) in the case of change of liability, amendment of the bye-laws of the Cooperative Society Concerned is registered or deemed to have been registered, or
 - (ii) in the case of division or amalgamation, the certificate of registration of the Cooperative Society or the Cooperative Societies as the case may be, is issued or deemed to have been issued.
- (9) When resolution passed by a Cooperative Society under sub-section (2) takes effect the resolution shall be a sufficient conveyance to vest the assets and liabilities in the transferee without any further assurance.
- (10) The registration of a Cooperative Society shall stand cancelled and the Cooperative Society Shall be deemed to have been dissolved and shall cease to exist as a corporate body-
 - (a) when the whole of the assets and liabilities of such cooperative Society are transferred to another Cooperative Society, or
 - (b) when such Cooperative Society divides itself into two or more Cooperative Societies.
- (11) Where two or more Cooperative Societies are amalgamate into a new Cooperative Society the registration of the Cooperative Societies so amalgamated shall stand cancelled and they shall be deemed to have been dissolved and shall cease to exist as corporate bodies.
- 12. **Promotion of subsidiary Organisation.-** (1) Any Cooperative Society may, by a resolution passed at general meeting by a majority of members present having voting right, promote one or more subsidiary organisations for the furtherance of its stated objectives, and such organisation or organisations may be registered under any, law for the time being in force, as agreed to by the general body.
- (2) The annual reports and accounts of any such subsidiary organization shall be placed before the general meeting of the promoting Cooperative Society every year.
- (3) Any subsidiary organization created under-section (1) shall exist only as long as general body of the Cooperative Society deems its existence necessary.
- **13.** Creation of new organization with others. Where the Collaboration between a Cooperative Society and any other organisation or organisation requires the creation of a new organisation, the new organisation may be registered as a company or a public society, a appropriate for the fulfillment of the objective with which it was created.

CHAPTER - IV

- **14.** Cooperative Union/ Federations.- (1) A Cooperative Union shall be registered in the State under this Act and it shall be known as the State Cooperative Union of Bihar. The Cooperative/Union shall be constituted consisting of the Cooperative Federations and such Cooperative Societies as are not the members of any Cooperative Federation.
- (2) Cooperative Federations consisting of Primary and Central Cooperative Societies having same nature of objects may be established and shall be eligible for registration under this Act:

Provided that there shall be only one federation in the State for a class of primary and Central Cooperative Societies having same mature of objects.

- (3) For servicing their constituents and in accordance with their bye-saws, Union/Federations may perform the following functions:-
 - (a) safeguard the observance of the Cooperative principles,
 - (b) promote and organize Cooperative Societies and for this purpose frame model bye-laws and guide lines for framing various regulations and policies for consideration by Cooperative Societies,

- (c) Provide Cooperative training, education and information and propagate Cooperative principles,
- (d) undertake research and evaluation and assist in preparation of perspective development plans of member Cooperative Societies,
- (e) promote harmonious relations between member Cooperative Societies.
- (f) help member Cooperative Society in the settlement of dispute among themselves and between a Cooperative Society and its members,
- (g) represent the interests of member Cooperative Societies,
- (h) undertake business services on behalf of its members,
- (i) provide Cooperative and management development services to member Cooperative Societies including participation in board meetings where invited,
- (j) to prepare a panel of auditors and ensure timely conduct of annual audit in member Cooperative Societies,
- (k) ensure timely conduct of election in member Cooperative Societies,
- (I) assist member Cooperative Societies in regular conduct of general meeting,
- (m) evolve code of conduct for observance by member Cooperative Societies,
- (n) evolve viability norms for member Cooperative Societies,
- (o) provide legal aid and advice,
- (p) assist member Cooperative Societies in organising self-help groups of people living in area,
- (q) provide any other services, at the behest of member Cooperative Societies.
- (4) (a) A federation may request the board of a member Cooperative Society to convene a general body meeting of its members and shall request the board to do so where at least ten percent of the members of the member Cooperative Societies have requested the federation to do so.
- (b) The requisition shall contain the items to be included in the agenda and these shall be dealt with at the general body meeting.
- (c) The board of the member Cooperative Societies shall convene such a meeting thirty days of receipt of the requisition.
- (d) Where a member Cooperative Society fails to convene a general meeting within thirty days of receipt of a requisition to do so by a Federation, the board of the Federation may themselves call such meeting for dealing with such items as included in the requisition.
- (5) (a) General body of Federation shall consist of the delegates from the member Cooperative Societies.
- (b) The chair-person of a Cooperative Society shall ordinarily by the delegate of the next tier of Cooperative Society:

Provided that if the chair-person is unable to represent owing to illness or other unavoidable reasons, he may nominate the Chief Executive or any other member of the board to be the delegate.

- (c) The delegate shall continue to represent his Cooperative Society in the next tier of Cooperative Society, Federation/ Union as long as he remains in office in the member Cooperative Society.
 - (6) The Cooperative Union may-
 - (i) create and maintain the Cooperative education fund,
 - (ii) represent the interest and welfare of all types of Cooperative societies at the district and State level.
 - (iii) Promote new forms of Cooperative enterprise,
 - (iv) undertake experimental projects towards the application of Cooperative ideology.
 - (v) Liaison on half of and amongst Cooperative Societies, and
 - (vi) serve as a date bank on Cooperation.

CHAPTER-V

15. *Mobilisation of funds*. – A Cooperative Society may mobilize funds in the shape of share capital, deposits, loans and other contributions from its members to such extent and under such conditions as may be permissible under the bye-laws of the Cooperative Society:

Provided that at the time of dissolution of a Cooperative Society the amounts due to the members shall be settled only after settlement of due to others.

- **16. Restriction on borrowings.-** (1) A Cooperative Society may mobilise debentures, deposits, raise loans and receive grants from external sources to such extent and under such conditions as may be specified in the bye-laws. Deposits and loans raised form external sources, however, shall at no time exceed ten times the sum of member funds and organisational reserves less accumulated deficit, if any.
- (2) A Cooperative Society may accept funds/guarantees from the government of other financing institution for the fulfilment of its objectives on such terms and conditions as are mutually contracted, upon and such conditions may include the right of the government or other financier to nominate one expert on the board.
- **17.** Restriction on holding of equity. (1) No member in a primary Cooperative Society shall, at anytime, hold more than one-tenth of the paid up equity capital.
- (2) No Cooperative Society shall accept funds from the government by way of equity.
- **18.** *Disposal of surplus.-* (1) In any year, a Cooperative Society shall, out of the surplus arising from transactions with members in that year, make deferred payment to members as patronage rebate, an amount not exceeding twenty-five percent of surplus and make payment of dividend on share capital not exceeding fifteen percent of surplus divided into the members according to their shares.
- (2) The balance surplus accruing from members and the entire surplus accruing from transactions with others, shall be utilized in the following manner:-
 - (a) not less than twenty-five percent shall be transferred to a statutory reserve fund.
 - (b) not less than twenty percent shall be transferred to a reserve for meeting unforeseen losses,
 - (c) where the Cooperative Society is a member of the Cooperative Union, upto three percent may b transferred to a Cooperative Education Fund with the Cooperative Union,
 - (d) bonus shall be paid to employees in accordance with the decision of the general body,
 - (e) not less than five percent may be transferred towards a common good fund whose purpose is approved by the general body,
 - (f) not more than five percent may e paid as contribution for any purpose connected with the development of the Cooperative movement.
- **19.** *Management of Deficit.* (1) Where a Cooperative Society is left with a deficit in any given year, the board shall place before the general body in the first following annual gen4eral meeting, a detailed report on the causes of deficit and the manner in which the deficit is proposed to be met.
- (2) The general body of the Cooperative Society shall decide to have the deficit covered by setting it off against the amounts available in the deficit cover fund, and/ or by debiting the deficit to the account of the members in proportion to the services they had availed or were expected avail of the Cooperative Society during the year.
- **20.** Reserve and other funds. (1) A Cooperative Society may create statutory reserves and other funds for the promotion of the objects of the Cooperative Society.
- (2) Reserves and other funds shall be used for the purpose for which they were created when necessary but otherwise may be used in the business of the Cooperative Society.

- **21.** *Investment of fund outside the business.* Such of its funds as are not needed for us by a Cooperative Society may be invested or deposited outside its business-
 - (a) in any union/federation of which it is a member,
 - (b) in a local Cooperative bank,
 - (c) in the equities of any other Cooperative Societies,
 - (d) in any of the securities specified in section 20 of the Indian Trust Act, 1982,
 - (e) in the total Postal Savings Bank.
 - (f) in any of the non-speculative manner as provided in the bye-laws,
- **22.** Restriction on contribution. No Cooperative Society shall make a contribution either in money or in kind, either directly or indirectly to an organisation that has as an object the furtherance of the interests of a political party of any religious faith.

CHAPTER - VI

23. Membership.- (1) Any person, who needs the services of the Cooperative Society, accept the responsibilities of membership and fulfils such other Conditions as may be specified in the bye-laws of the Cooperative Society. May be admitted as a member:

Provide that the Cooperative Society is in position to extend its services to the applicant and that the applicant is not already a member of a Cooperative Society registered under this Act, or the Bihar Cooperative Societies Act, 1935 providing the same or similar services.

- (2) Membership shall be available without any discrimination on grounds of sex.
- (3) Admission of members and removal from membership shall be made in accordance with the procedure specified in the bye-laws only by an elected board or by the general body where such an elected board does not exist for the time being.
- (4) No Cooperative Society Shall, without Sufficient cause, refuse admission to any person duly qualified for membership under the bye-laws. Where admission is so refused, the decision with the reasons therefore shall be communicated to such applicant within fifteen days of the date of the decision or within thirty days from the date of application for membership, whichever is earlier;

Provide that if no such decision is communicated within thirty days of applying for membership then the person shall be deemed to have been admitted as a member of the Cooperative Society on the thirty-first day.

- (5) Where a person has of communication of such decision to the general body against the decision of the board.
- (6) Any applicant aggrieved by the decision of the general body may file a rev9ision within sixty days of communication of such decision before the Cooperative Tribunal.
- (7) A person admitted as a member may exercise the rights of membership, including the right to vote, only on fulfilment of such conditions as may be laid down from time to time in the bye-laws:

Provide that a person shall have been a member for at least one year before being eligible to exercise the right of vote:

Provided further that the above proviso shall not apply to the promoter members in the first year of registration of a Cooperative Society.

- 24. Restriction on services to non-members. A Cooperative Society's services shall ordinarily by available only to members unless otherwise provided in the bye-laws.
- 25. *General Body.* (1) Subject to the provisions of this Act and the bye-laws the ultimate authority of a Cooperative Society shall vest in its general body.
- (2) Where a Cooperative Society so desires, its bye-laws may provide for a representative general body drawn from the members to be constituted in such a manner and with such functions as specified in the byelaws.

Provided that the representative general body shall not have the right to amend the bye-law of the Cooperative Society except those in relation to which the bye-laws have delegated the power of amendment to the representative general body.

- (3) Subject to the provisions of the Act, and of the bye-laws the following matters shall be dealt with by the general body-
 - (a) election of directors of the board,
 - (b) removal of directors of the board and filling up of vacancies,
 - (c) consideration of the annual report presented by the board for being filed with the Registrar,
 - (d) appointment and removal of statutory auditors and internal auditors,
 - (e) consideration of the auditor's report and audited statement of accounts for being filed with the Registrar,
 - (f) consideration of audit/special audit compliance report,
 - (g) report on action taken on inquiry report under section 36, if any,
 - (h) disposal of net surplus,
 - (i) review of operational deficit, if any,
 - (j) approval of the long term perspective plan and the annual operational plan,
 - (k) approval of the annual budget,
 - (I) creation of specific reserves and other funds.
 - (m) review of actual utilization of reserve and other funds,
 - (n) report on membership of the cooperative Society in other Cooperative Societies.
 - (o) review of annual report and accounts of any subsidiary organisation,
 - (p) appeal of a person whose application for membership has been rejected or whose membership has been terminated by the board.
 - (q) appointment, reconstitution and disbanding of the Representative General Body,
 - (r) remuneration payable to any Director or internal auditor in connection with his duties in that capacity or his attendance at related meeting,
 - (s) membership of the Cooperative Society in union/federation.
 - (t) Collaboration with other organisation,
 - (u) amendment of bye-law,
 - (v) formulation of code of conduct for the Directors and office, bearers.
 - (w) note of admission and termination of members,
 - (x) dissolution of the Cooperative Society.
 - (y) such other functions specified in the bye-saws.
- 26. *Board.-* (1) The general body of a Cooperative Society shall constitute a board in accordance with the bye-laws.
- (2) The size of the board shall be in accordance with the bye-laws. Chief Executive shall be an ex-officio member of the board.
- (3) In addition to such criteria as may be specified in the bye-laws, a person shall be ineligible for being chosen as a director, if he-
 - (a) has at any time lost the right to vote as a member as specified in the bye-laws,
 - (b) loses the right to continue as member as specified in the bye-laws or
 - (c) incurs any other disqualification specified in the bye-laws.
- (4) In addition to such criteria as may be specified in the bye-laws a person shall cease to be a director if the incurs any of the disqualifications specified in sub-section (3), or
 - (a) absents himself from three consecutive board meetings without leave of absence.
 - (b) absents himself from three consecutive general body meeting without leave of absence, or

- (c) is penalized under this Act.
- (5) In addition to such criteria as be specified in the bye-laws, the directors of the board shall incur disqualification for a period of ¹[five year for being chosen as directors and shall be ineligible to continue as directors of any Cooperative Society if during their term as directors of a Cooperative Society-
 - (a) they did not conduct elections within the time specified in the bye-laws and before the expiry of their term.
 - (b) they did not conduct annual general body meeting within four months of closure of the Cooperative's accounting year or a requisitioned meeting of the general body, or
 - (c) the did not place the audited accounts for the preceding financial year along with the reports of the auditors before the general body at its annual general meeting.
- (6) In order to be eligible for being chosen as a director of the board of a Cooperative Society which has been inexistence for more than two years, a member-
 - (a) shall have been a voting member of the Cooperative society for at least two years immediately preceding the year of election.
 - (b) shall have attended two general body meeting of the Cooperative Society immediately preceding the elections, and

¹[xxx]

- (7) Every director and employee of a Cooperative Society while exercising his powers and discharging his duties shall-
 - (a) act honestly and in good faith and in the best interests of the Cooperative Society, and
 - (b) exercise such due care, diligence and skill as a reasonably person would exercise in similar circumstances.
- (8) A director or employee who is guilty of misappropriation, breach of trust or any other omission or commission resulting in loss to the Cooperative Society, shall be personally liable to make good that loss, without prejudice to such criminal action to which he is liable under the law.
- **27. Powers and functions of the board.-** (1) The board shall in accordance with the bye-laws, be the authority to-
 - (a) admit and terminate membership.
 - (b) elect the chair-person and other office-bearers,
 - (c) remove form office the chair-person and other office bearers.
 - (d) appoint and remove the chief executive.
 - (e) fix staff strength,
 - (f) frame policies concerning
 - (i) organisation and provision of services to members,
 - (ii) qualifications, recruitment, service conditions and other matters related to its employees.
 - (iii) mode of custody and investment of funds,
 - (iv) manner of keeping accounts,
 - (v) mobilization, utilization and investment of various funds,
 - (vi) monitoring and management of information system including statutory returns to be filed,
 - (vii) such other subjects and matters necessary for the effective performance of the Cooperative Society.
 - (g) place the annual report, annual financial statements, annual plan and budget for the approval of the general body,
 - (h) consider audit and compliance reports and place these before the general body.

- (i) review membership in other Cooperative Societies.
- (j) undertake such other functions as delegated by the general body.
- 1. Sub. for the word "three' by (amdt.) Act 9 of 2002 2. "Clause (c)" of sub-section 6 repealed by ibid.
- (2) The chair-person shall be elected by the board from among the elected members and shall, in accordance with the bye-law-
 - (a) preside at meetings of the board and the general body meeting.
 - (b) have a second vote in the event of equality of votes on any matter being decided upon by the board except in matter of election.
 - (c) exercise such other powers as delegated by the board specified in the policies framed or resolutions adopted by the board.
- 28. Term of office.- The term of office of the director of the board, or where the bye-laws provide for retirement of directors by rotation, the term of office of the individual director, shall be for such period as specified in the bye-laws but shall not exceed ¹[five years form the date of assumption of office:

Provided that the term of office can be terminated by the general body at is meeting by a majority of members with right of vote;

Provided further that the first board shall not exceed twelve months from the date of registration of the Cooperative Society.

- 29. *Elections.* (1) The conduct of elections to the board of a Cooperative Society shall be responsibility of the incumbent board.
- (2) Election shall be conducted in the manner specified in the bye-laws before the term of office of the outgoing directors comes to an end.
 - (3) The election of the directors shall take place at the general body meeting.
- (3) The directors shall hold office for the period specified in the bye-laws and for which they were elected and the newly elected directors shall assume office on completion of the period of the outgoing directors or the cessation of the period as the case may be.
 - (5) The director shall if the-laws so permit, be eligible for re-election:

- (6) Where the number of nominees exceeds the number of directors to be elected, the election of directors shall be by secret ballot.
- (7) Where a board does not take necessary steps to conduct elections before the expiry of the terms of the directors, or where there are no directors remaining on the board, a minimum of five percent of total members of the Cooperative Society may jointly convene a general meeting of the members, for appointing an ad-hoc board for the specific purpose of conduction elections.
- 1. Subs, for the figure 'three" by (Andt.) Act 9 of 2002
- 2. "Proviso" repealed by ibid.
 - (8) The term of ad-hoc board so appointed shall not exceed three months.
- (9) If an ad-hoc board is not constituted in accordance with sub-section (7), it shall be duty of the federation to inform the Registrar.
- (10) The Registrar on the report of the federation under sub-section (9) may suo moto convene a general meeting for appointing another ad-hoard for the specified purpose of conduction elections.
- (11) The term of the ad-hoc board appointed under sub-section (10) shall not exceed one month and this ad-hoc board shall cease to function as soon as a regular board is elected in accordance with the bye-laws.
 - (12) The cost of conduction elections shall be borne by the Cooperative Society.
- (13) Where there is vacancy on the board and where there is not a quorum of directors due to such vacancy the remaining directors shall call a general meeting for the purpose of electing members to fill any vacancies for the remaining period, if the remaining period is over six months.

- **30.** *Meetings.* (1) The bye-laws of a Cooperative Society shall specify the frequency of and manner in which board meetings and general body meeting shall be hold, so however the board shall meet at least once in every three months and the genera body shall meet atleast once a year.
- (2) The board shall also convene a general meeting within thirty days of receipt of a requisition for convening a meeting signed by atleast one-tenth of members of the Cooperative Society and any such requisition shall contain the proposed agenda and the reasons why the meeting is felt necessary.
- (3) Where the board fails to convene the annual or requisitioned general meeting within due time, it shall be competent for the Registrar to convene the requisitioned or annual general meetings as the case may be.
- (4) Every Cooperative Society shall record in the minute's book minutes of all proceedings of every general meeting and of every meeting of its board of directors.
- (5) Such minutes shall be communicated to all persons invited for the meeting within thirty days of the conclusion of the meeting.
- (6) The minutes so recorded shall be signed by the person who chaired the said meeting.
- **31. Staff.-** (1) All staff of the Cooperative Society shall be the employees of the Cooperative Society and shall be fully accountable to the Cooperative Society and be appointed, removed and function in accordance with such service conditions as may be framed by the board:

Provided that a Cooperative Society may take personnel on deputation from other agencies on such terms as are mutually agreed upon.

(2) An officer of the government shall not either during the course of his service with the government or for a period of three years thereafter, serve in any capacity with any Cooperative Society.

CHAPTER - VII INFORMATION

- 32. Accounts and records to be maintained.-
- (1) Every Cooperative Society shall keep at its registered office the following accounts and records:-
 - (a) a copy of this Act with amendments made from time to time,
 - (b) the minutes book,
 - (c) registration certificate and a copy of the registered bye-laws and for the amendments registered from time to time with date of amendment.
 - (d) a copy of the authenticated bye-laws of the federation/union of which it is a member and for each of its member Cooperative Societies.
 - (e) account of all sums of money received and expended by the Cooperative Society and their respective purposes.
 - (f) account of all purchases and sales of goods by the Cooperative Society,
 - (g) account of the assets and liabilities of the Cooperative Society.
 - (h) a register showing total membership and the memberwise use of various services,
 - (i) a list of members with voting rights for the current year updated within thirty days of closure of the financial year,
 - (i) copies of the board policies,
 - (k) annual report, audit report, special audit report and their compliances.
 - (I) copies of other laws and regulations to which the Cooperative Society is subject,
 - (m) such other documents as are relevant to the functioning of the society:

Provided that where a Cooperative Society has branch offices, accounts and records related to the branch, shall be available at the registered office for any period within twenty five days of the end of the financial year.

- (2) Copies of this Act, bye-laws, minutes book, voter's and such accounts as related to a member shall be made available to any member during business hours at a fee to be decided by the Cooperative Society.
- (3) The books of accounts of every Cooperative Society together with supporting records and vouchers shall be preserved for such period as may be provided in the byelaws subject to any other laws for the time being in force.
- **33.** Audit. (1) A Cooperative Society shall get it's a accounts audited by an auditor selected from the panel prepared by federation. Such Auditor shall either be a Chartered Accountant within the meaning of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 or form the office of the Registrar. The panel shall also be maintained by the office of the Registrar. Where there is no union/federation such auditor shall be selected from the panel maintained by the Registrar.
- (2) The auditor's report in addition to the report on the accounts of the Cooperative Society shall also contain report on the attendance at meeting by directors, loans and advances sanctioned to or the business done with the Cooperative Society by the directors, expenditure of board meetings, remuneration pain to directors, expenses reimbursed to directors, expenditure on education and training for members, staff, directors and others.
- (3) It shall be the duty of the board to ensure that annual financial statements are prepared and present for audit within forty-five days of closure of the financial year.
- (4) The remuneration of an auditor may be fixed by the board and placed before the general body at its next meeting, for information.
- (5) The general body of federation may at a special meeting remove an auditor from office by a resolution passed by a majority of the members present and voting.
- (6) The auditor shall be given notice of every general meeting and will be entitled to attend the meeting.
- (7) Upon the demand of the auditor of a Cooperative Society the present or former office-bearers, board members or employees of the Cooperative Society shall furnish-
 - (a) such information and explanation, as may be considered necessary, and
 - (b) each of the record, documents, books accounts and vouchers of the Cooperative Society as are, in the opinion of the auditor, necessary to enable him to make the examination and report.
- (8) Where a Cooperative Society fails to get its annual account audited when due, it shall be the responsibility of the Cooperative Union/ Federation to get the accounts of the Cooperative Society audited within a period of ninety days from the date when the audit was due.
 - (9) The cost of conducting such audit shall be borne by the Cooperative Society.
- (10) If the Cooperative Union/Federation is unable to get the audit of the Cooperative Society conducted for any reason, the Registrar shall get the accounts of the Cooperative Society audited.
- **34. Special Audit.** (1) A Cooperative Society dealing with funds from the Government or other external individual or institution may be subject to a special audit initiated y the Registrar.
- (2) The cost of the special audit under sub-section (1) shall be met by the creditor: Provided that where the special audit reveals serious mismanagement in the Cooperative Society, such costs may be recovered from the Cooperative Society or the persons responsible for the mismanagement.
 - (3) Every special audit shall be completed and the report submitted to the Registrar within one hundred and twenty days of its commencement.
 - (4) The special audit report shall contain a statement of :-
 - (a) every payment which appears to the auditor to be contrary to law,

- (b) the amount of any deficiency, waste or loss which appears to have been caused by the gross negligence or misconduct of any person in the performance of duties,
- (c) the amount of any sum received which ought to have been accounted for but is not brought into account by any person, and
- (d) any material impropriety or irregularity which he may observe in the expenditure or in the recovery of money due.
- (5) The Registrar shall, within a period of thirty days from the date of the receipt of the special audit report copies of the same to –
- (a) the applicant creditor,
- (b) the Cooperative Society concerned, and
- (c) the Cooperative Tribunal where necessary.
- **35.** Filing of Returns. Every Cooperative Society within five months of the close of the year shall file the following information with the Registrar:-
 - (a) annual report of activities.
 - (b) audited statements of accounts.
 - (c) plan for surplus disposal as approved by the general body.
 - (d) list of names of directors and their terms of office,
 - (e) list of amendments to the bye-laws of the Cooperative Society,
 - (f) declaration regarding date of holding of general body meeting and conduct of elections where due,
 - (g) compliance report relating to audit/ special audit/enquiry.
- **36.** Enquiry. (1) Every Cooperative Society shall furnish any relevant information required by the Registrar in order to enable him to satisfy whether the Cooperative Society has conducted its affairs in accordance with the Cooperative Principles and the provisions of this Act.
- (2) The Registrar may, of his own motion, and shall on the application, of union/ federation to which the Cooperative Society concerned it affiliated, or of a creditor to whom the Cooperative Society is indebted or of not less than one-third of the directors, or of not less than ten percent of the members, hold an enquiry or cause an enquiry to made into the specific matter or matters relating to any gross violation of any of the provisions of this Act by the Cooperative Society.
- (3) The Registrar shall order an enquiry only after the receipt of the fee, from the applicant or applicants, deemed sufficient to meet the costs of the enquiry to be conducted.
- (4) The enquiry shall be completed within a period of four months from the date of ordering the enquiry.
- (5) The Registrar shall within a period of one month from the date of completion of enquiry, communicate the report of the enquiry-
 - (a) to the Cooperative Society concerned,
 - (b) to the applicant person designated by the applicant to receive such a report.
 - (c) to any member of a Cooperative Society, to any Federation of which the Cooperative Society is a member, to any creditor on payment of fee specified by the Registrar,
 - (d) to the Cooperative Tribunal.
- **37.** Power to summon and examine persons and documents. (1) The person authorised to conduct special audit under section 34 or enquiry under section 36 shall give the concerned Cooperative Society, not less than fifteen days notice in writing of the date on which he proposes to commence the special audit or enquiry:

Provided that for special reasons to be recorded in writing, he may give a shorter notice than fifteen days of commence a special audit or enquiry on the authority of the Registrar without such notice.

- (2) For the purpose of any special audit or enquiry under this Act, the person conducting such audit or enquiry may -
 - (a) require in writing the chair-person or other authority concerned to produce at the head office of the Cooperative Society such receipts, vouchers, statements, returns, correspondence, notice or any other documents as he may consider for purpose of special audit or enquiry:
 - (b) require in writing,
 - (i) any employee of the Cooperative Society or other authority accountable for or having custody or control or such receipts, vouchers, statements, returns correspondence, notes or other documents, to appear in person or
 - (ii) any person having directly or indirectly any share or interest in any contract with the Cooperative Society to appear in person or by an authorized agent, before him at the head office of the Cooperative Society and answer any question or sign a declaration with respect hereto:
 - (c) In the event of an explanation being required from the chair-person or any other authority concerned invite him in writhing specifying the points on which his explanation is required to meet him at the head office of the Cooperative Society; or
 - (d) exercise such other powers as can be reasonably said to be necessary or the purposes of this section.
- (3) The person conducting special audit or compliance of the provisions period of not less than seven days for the purpose of compliance of the provisions of sub-section (2), and such compliance shall be mandatory on the persons required to provide information under sub-section (2).
- **38.** Action on Special Audit or Enquiry Report. On communication of a special audit report under section 34 or an enquiry report under section 36 to the persons concerned the Registrar may, where the special audit or enquiry report reveal mismanagement on the part of any or all of the office-bearers or directors, without prejudice to any civil or criminal proceeding to which they may be liable-
 - (a) direct the board to convene a general body meeting within such reasonable time as he may specify to enable him to bring to the notice or the general bode, either directly or through his nominee, the findings of special audit or enquiry report, for necessary action; or
 - (b) make a prayer to the Cooperative Tribunal for necessary action.

CHAPTER VIII

SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES

- **39.** Constitution of Cooperative Tribunals. Subject to such rules as may be prescribed the State Government shall, by a notification published in the Official Gazette, constitute as may Cooperative Tribunals as may be necessary, for such area of areas as many be specified the notification, consisting of one or more members to exercise all the
 - (a) direct the board to convene a general body meeting within such reasonable time as he may specify to enable him to bring to the notice or the general bode, either directly or through his nominee, the findings of special audit or enquiry report, for necessary action; or
 - (b) make a prayer to the Cooperative Tribunal for necessary action.
 - (c) between the Co-operative Society or its board and past board, director, officebearer, or the nominee, heirs or legal representatives of any deceased director, deceased office-bearer of the Cooperative Society, or
 - (d) between the Cooperative Society and other Cooperative Society, or
 - (e) between the promoters of a Cooperative Society and the Registrar, or a Cooperative Society and the Registrar, or

(f) between a Cooperative Society and liquidator of another Cooperative Society or between the liquidators of more Cooperative Societies, Such disputes may be referred to Cooperative Tribunal for decision:

Provided that no dispute shall be referred under this section to the Cooperative Tribunal unless the disputing parties exhausted all remedies that may be available in the bye-laws for the settlement of disputes.

- (2) Any dispute relating to elections held to a Cooperative Society may be referred to the Cooperative Tribunal for decision.
- (3) Any appeal against a decision of the Tribunal shall lie before the High Court within sixty days of the date of order.
- 41. Power of the Tribunal to order recovery. (1) A member, director of chair-person of the Cooperative Society may and the Registrar shall file a copy of the report of the auditor or the special auditor or the enquiry officer, before the Tribunal with an application for necessary action against the person on account of whose conduct the Cooperative Society has incurred loss. The Tribunal may on the basis of such report disallow every item of expenditure incurred contrary to law and order recovery of the same form the person held responsible in the said report for any deficiency, loss or unprofitable outlay occasioned by his negligence or misconduct or of any such amount which ought to have been accounted but is not brought into account by that person and shall, in every such case, specify the amount liable to be paid by such person to the Cooperative Society.

Explanation. – It shall not be open to any person whose negligence or misconduct has caused or contributed to any such deficiency or loss, to contend that notwithstanding his negligence or misconduct the deficiency or loss would not have occurred, but for the negligence or misconduct of some other person.

(2) The Tribunal shall state in writing the reasons for its decision in respect of every disallowance, surcharge and a copy of such decision shall be served on the person against whom it is made in the manner laid down for the service of summons in the code of Civil Procedure, 1908:

Provided that the Tribunal shall not pass any order of recovery under this section unless the person against whom any such order is passed has had an opportunity of making a representation either by himself or through the counsel.

- (3) Any person aggrieved by an order passed under this section may, within sixty days after the date of service on him of the order by the Tribunal, file an appeal against such order in the High court.
- (4) The order passed by the Tribunal or the High Court shall be executed in the same manner as a decree of a Civil Court under the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908.

CHAPTER IX

OFFENCES AND PENALTIES

- **42.** Offences and penalties. (1) It shall be an offence under this Act, if a Cooperative Society:-
 - (a) fails to give a notice, send a return or document or fails to do or allows to be done any act which a Cooperative Society is by this Act or under its bye-laws required to give, send, do or allow to be done;
 - (b) willfully neglects or refuses to do an act or to furnish information required for the purposes of this Act or does an act forbidden by this Act, or the bye- laws;
 - (c) makes a return, or willfully furnishes information in any respect false or insufficient;
 - (d) indulges in fraudulent activities concerning the constitution, management and business of the Cooperative Society;
 - (e) misuses the funds and property of the cooperative Society; or
 - (f) indulges in the conduct of elections to the Board in "corrupt practices" as defined under section 123 of the Representation of People Act, 1951,

- (2) It shall be an offence under this Act, if any person or Cooperative Society contravenes the provisions of this Act of the bye-laws of the Cooperative Society.
- (3) An offence by a Cooperative Society shall be deemed to have been also committed by each office- bearer of the Cooperative Society bound by the bye-laws thereof to fulfill the duties where of the breach is an offence, or if there is no such office-office-bearer then by each of the directors, unless the office-bearer or director, as the case may be proves to have attempted to prevent the commission of the offence.
- (4) An offence under this section shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to one year or with fine which may extend to one year or with fine which may extend to Rs. 2000 (Rupees Two thousand), or with both:

Provided that where a person is guilty of misappropriation, fraud, breach of trust, cheating or may other act involving moral turpitude, resulting in a loss to the Cooperative Society, he shall also he punishable under the relevant provisions of the Indian Penal Code, 1860.

CHAPTER X

DISSOLUTION

43. Dissolution by members. - (1) A Cooperative Society may, by a special resolution, authorise its own dissolution :

Provided that a notice of the general meeting shall also be sent with an invitation to attend, to the Registrar, to any federation of which the Cooperative Society is affiliated, to creditors and to any organisation with which a partnership contract has been entered into.

- (2) Invitees under the proviso of sub-section (1) shall have the right to make representation to the general body if they so wish to, giving reason why dissolution is not called for.
- (3) Within fifteen days of such authorization for dissolution, the Cooperative Society shall send to the Registrar a copy of the authorization to dissolve the Cooperative Society.
- (4) The authorization approved in pursuance of sub-lection (1) shall be required to set out the following namely:-
 - (a) the assets and liabilities of the Cooperative Society:
 - (b) the claims of creditors, and collaborators and protected share holders;
 - (c) the number of members;
 - (d) the nature and extent of the members interest in the Cooperative Society; and
 - (e) the name of the liquidator, if appointed by the general body, or a request to the Registrar to appoint the liquidator or a request to the Registrar to issue a certificate of dissolution where there are no assets or liabilities.
- (5) Where the Registrar receives the special resolution passed in pursuance of sub-section (1) he shall cause at the expense of the Cooperative Society a notice of the special resolution to be published in the district where the registered office of the Cooperative Society is located.
- (6) The Registrar may require form the Cooperative Society, the liquidator appointed by the Cooperative Society or may other person who is required to furnish information, a periodical return showing.
 - (a) the progress of dissolution;
 - (b) the distribution of any undistributed surplus or reserve; and
 - (c) any other relevant information the he may require.
- **44.** Dissolution by Tribunal. (1) The Registrar or an interested person may, after giving the Cooperative Society ninety days notice of the proposed application, apply to the Tribunal for an order dissolving the Cooperative Society, where he has reasonable cause to believe that the Cooperative Society has no right to be or to continue to be recognized as a Cooperative Society, because it-
 - (a) obtained its registration by fraud or mistake;

- (b) is serving illegal purposes;
- (c) has willfully, after notice by the Registrar; violated any of the provisions of this Act or its by- laws;
- (d) is no longer operating in accordance with Cooperative principles and the provision of this Act;
- (e) has not commenced business within two years of the date of registration; or
- (f) has not carried on business for the past two consecutive years.
- (2) Where an interested person applies in pursuance of this section, he shall gibe the Registrar notice of his application and the Registrar shall be entitled to appear and be heard in person or by counsel.
- (3) Where the Tribunal receives an application in pursuance of this section it may, after giving a reasonable opportunity to the Cooperative Society to state its case, order that the Cooperative Society be dissolved or liquidated and dissolved under the supervision of the Registrar.
- (4) Where the Registrar receives an order made in pursuance of sub-section (3) he shall,
 - (a) where the order is to dissolve the Cooperative Society, issue a certificate of dissolution, or
 - (b) where the order is to liquidate and dissolve the Cooperative Society under the supervision of the Registrar, publish a notice in newspaper published or distributed in the district in which the registered office of the Cooperative Society is situated.
- **45.** Appointment of liquidator. Where a Cooperative Society is to be liquidated and dissolved and no liquidator is appointed y the general body or the Tribunal, the Registrar may-
 - (a) appoint any person as a liquidator to wind up the affairs of the Cooperative Society, or
 - (b) where he is satisfied that the Cooperative Society has no assets and liabilities, issue a certificate of dissolution.
 - **46.** Duties of liquidator. On his appointment, a liquidator shall-
 - (i) in the case of a liquidator not appointed by the Registrar, to the Registrar, and
 - (ii) to each claimant and creditor known to the liquidator.
 - (b) immediately publish notice of his appointment once a week for two consecutive weeks in a newspaper published or distributed in the place where the Cooperative Society has its registered office and take reasonable steps to give notice of the liquidation in every jurisdiction where the Cooperative Society carries on business;
 - (c) Place in notice mentioned in clause (a) and (b) a provision requiring ay person,
 - (i) indebted to the Cooperative Society, to render an account and pay to the liquidator at the time and place specified any owing,
 - (ii) possessing property of the Cooperative Society to deliver it to the liquidator at the time and place specified, and
 - (iii) having a claim against the Cooperative Society, whether liquidated, unliquidated, future or contingent, to present particulars of the claim in writing to the liquidator not later than two months after the first publication of the notice.
 - (d) take into custody and control the property of the Cooperative Society;
 - (e) open and maintain a trust account for the moneys of the Cooperative society;
 - (f) keep accounts of the moneys of the Cooperative Society received and paid out by him.
 - (g) maintain a separate list of members, creditors and other persons hiving claims against the Cooperative Society;

- (h) where at any time he determines that the Cooperative Society is unable to pay or adequately provide for the discharge of its obligations apply to the Registrar for directions; and
- (i) deliver to the Registrar, periodically as the Registrar may require, financial statements of the Cooperative Society is any form that the liquidator considers proper or that the Registrar may require.
- **47.** Powers of liquidator. (1) The liquidator may-
 - (a) retain lawyers, accountants, engineers, appraises and other professional advisors;
 - (b) bring, defend or take part in any civil, criminal or administrative action or proceeding in the name and on behalf of the Cooperative Society;
 - (c) carry on the business of the Cooperative Society as required for an orderly liquidation;
 - (d) sell by public auction any property of the Cooperative Society;
 - (e) do all acts and execute any documents in the name and on behalf of the Cooperative Society;
 - (f) borrow money on the security of the property of the Cooperative Society;
 - (g) settle or compromise any claims by or the Cooperative Society; and
 - (h) take all other steps that he considers necessary for the liquidation of the Cooperative Society and distribution of its properties and funds.
- (2) Where a liquidator has reason to believe that any person has in his possession or under his control, has concealed, withheld or misappropriated any property of the Cooperative Society he may apply to the court for proceeding into the matter in accordance with law.
- (3) Where the proceeding under sub-section (2) discloses that a person has concealed, withheld or misappropriated of the Cooperative Society, the Court may order that person to restore the property of pay compensation to the liquidator on behalf of the Cooperative Society.
- (4) No liquidator or his relatives shall purchase, directly or indirectly any part of the stock-in-trade, debts or assets of the Cooperative Society.
- **48.** Final Account. (1) A liquidator shall pay the costs of liquidation out of the property of the Cooperative Society and shall pay or make adequate provision for all claims against the Cooperative Society.
- (2) After paying or making adequate provision for all claims against the Cooperative Society, the liquidator shall apply to the Registrar for approval of his final accounts and for permission to distribute in money or in kind the remaining property of the Cooperative Society in accordance with the bye-laws.
- (3) where the Registrar approves the final accounts rendered by a liquidator in pursuance of sub-section (2), he shall-
 - (a) issue directions with respect to the custody or disposal of the documents and records of the Cooperative Society; and
 - (b) discharge the liquidator.
- (4) Where the Registrar discharges a liquidator pursuant to sub- section (3) he shall issues a certificate or dissolution.
- (5) The Cooperative Society ceases to exist on the date shown in the certificate of dissolution, which shall not be later than twenty-four months after appointment of the liquidator.

CHAPTER XI MISCELLANEOUS

49. Fee for services. – The Registrar may charge a reasonable fee any of the services provided by him or by an officer authorised by him under the provisions of this Act.

- **50.** Bar of jurisdiction of court. (1) Save as otherwise expressly provided in this Act, on Civil or Revenue Court shall have any jurisdiction in respect of any dispute required by section 40 to be referred to the Cooperative Tribunal, or recovery proceeding under section 41 or dissolution under section 43 and 44.
- (2) While a Cooperative Society is in liquidation under section 45, no suit or other legal proceedings shall be proceeded with or instituted against the liquidator as much (sic) or against the Cooperative Society or any member thereof on any matter touching the affairs of the Cooperative Society, except by leave of the Registrar and subject to such terms as he may impose.
- **51.** Rules. (1) The state Government may by notification make rules, to carry out all or any of the provisions of this Act.
- (2) The power to make rule conferred by this section is subject to the condition to the rules being made after previous publication.
- (3) All rules made under this section shall be published in the Official Gazette and on such publication shall have effect as if enacted under this Act.
- **52.** Removal of difficulty. (1) If any practical difficulty arises in giving effect to the provisions of this Act, the State Government, as occasion may require, by notification published in the Official Gazette, do anything not inconsistent with the provisions of this Act for purpose of removing the difficulty.
- (2) Should any doubt arise as to the construction and interpretation of any provision of this Act, the same may be referred to the Registrar of the state Government for decision.

अधिसूचना संख्या —9/सह विधि। (विविध)— 20/97/1891 दिनांक— 31.05.1997,— चूंकि बिहार स्वावलम्बी सहकारी समिति अधिनियम, 1996 (बिहार अधिनियम संख्या 2, 1997) की धारा— 49 के प्रावधानों को प्रभावी बनाने में व्यावहारिक कितनाईयाँ उत्पन्न हुई है, अतः उन्हें दूर करने हेतु राज्य सरकार, उक्त अधिनियम की धारा— 52 की उपधारा (1) के अन्तर्गत प्रदत्त शिक्तयों का प्रयोग करते हुए, निबंधक या उनके द्वारा प्राधिकृत किसी पदाधिकारी के द्वारा उक्त अधिनियम के अन्तर्गत प्रदान की गई विभिन्न सेवाओं के लिए उक्त अधिनियम की धारा — 49 के तहत प्रभारित की जाने वाली फीस (शुल्क) का निम्नांकित रूप से निर्धारण एवं भुगतान लिए जाने का आदेश देती है।

क्रमांक	अधिनियम के अंतर्गत प्रासंगिक घारा	सेवा	निर्धारित फीस	शीर्ष का नाम जिसमें राशि जमा होगी	अभ्युक्ति
1.	2.	3.	4.	5.	6.
1.	धारा–5	सहकारी समिति परिसंघ संघ का निबंधन	कुल प्राधिकृत हिस्सा — पूंजी चाहे उसका जो भी नाम कहा जाय का (न्यूनतम रुपया) 100 / — एवं अधिकतम रुपये— 10,000 / —)	सहकारिता लधु शीर्ष 800–अन्य प्राप्तियाँ	
				शूल्क	
2.	धारा—11 (8) (ख) (ii)	दायित्व का परिवर्त्तन संबंधी उपविधियों का संशोधना	तथैव	तथैव	
3.	धारा—11 (8) (ख) (ii)	विभाजन या	कुल प्राधिकृत हिस्सा — पूंजी चाहे उसका जो भी नाम कहा जाय (का 1/2 प्रतिशत न्यूनतम) रु. 50/— एवं अधिकतम रुपये 5000/—	तथैव	
4	धारा—12 (i)		उपर्युक्त क्रमांक–1 के अन्तर्गत	तथैव	

संगठन का इस निर्धारित पीस अधिनियम के अन्तर्गत निबंधन। अध्यपेषित या टाम सभा की जो भी लागत आयेगी, वार्षिक आम वह सोसाइटी के लेखा से वसूलनीय सभा बुलाना। होगी (यदि विभागीय अंकेक्षकों से कार्य लिया गया हो)

6. धारा—36 (3) जाँच का आदेश प्राथमिक रु. 200 /— केन्द्रीय रुपये तथैव 500 /— परिसंघ / संघ रु.

1.000 / -

7. धारा—36 (5) जाँच रिपोर्ट की प्रति पृष्ठ रुपये 1/— 1 रु. 100/— तथैव (ग) प्रति उपलब्ध

कराना

5.

धारा-30 (3)

8. धारा—44 (4) अपने पर्यवेक्षण में परिसमापन में जो भी लागत आयेगी तथैव (ख) परिसमापित / वह सोसाइटी के लेखा से वसूल की

विधटित करना। जायेगी।

क्रमांक 1 से 4 तक की फीस राज्य सहकारिता बैंक / संबंधित जिला केन्द्रीय सहकारिता बैंक में जमा की जायेगी। संबंधित बैंक का यह कर्त्तव्य होगा कि वह निबंधन की सूचना मिल जाने पर राशि उपर्युक्त स्तम्भ—5 में अंकित शीर्ष के अन्तर्गत चालान द्वारा कोषागार में जमा कर दें। प्रस्ताव के अस्वीकृत हो जाने की स्थिति में राशि संबंधित बैंक मुख्य प्रर्वतक को लौटा देंगे। अन्य फीस उक्त सूची के स्तम्भ—5 में अंकित शीर्ष के अन्तर्गत कोषागार में जालान द्वारा जमा की जायेगी।

तथैव

निबंधक सहयोग समितियाँ, बिहार, पत्र संख्या 10/ नि॰ (विधि) —1 06/97—4544 दिनांक 13 जून, 1997— प्रेषक, श्री सुधीर त्रिपाठी, निबंधक, सहयोग समितियाँ, बिहार, पटना सेवा में, अपर निबंधक, सहयोग समितियाँ, राँची। सभी प्रमंडलीय संयुक्त निबंधक, सहयोग समितियाँ। सभी जिला सहकारिता पदाधिकारी। सभी सहायक निबंधक, सहयोग समितियाँ।

* विषय – बिहार स्वावलम्बी सहकारी समिति अधिनियम, 1996 (बिहार संख्या–2, 1997) के अन्तर्गत सहकारी सितयों का निबंधन, उपविधियों का संशोधन, आदि के संदर्भ में अनुदेश।

उपर्युक्त विषयक अधोहस्ताक्षरी के पत्रांक — 4139 दिनांक 31.05.97 के क्रम में कहना है कि अधिनियम की धारा —5 (3) (च) के अनुसार निबंधन आवेदन शुल्क लेने की प्रक्रिया का निर्धारण विभागीय अधिसूचना संख्या—1891 दिनांक 31.05.97 द्वारा किया गया है। कृपया तदनुसार विहित प्राप्ति शीर्ष में विहित प्रक्रिया के अनुसार ही निबंधकन शूल्क एवं अन्य सेवा शूल्क लिया जाना सुनिश्चित किया जाय।

- 2. उपर्युक्त पत्रांक —4139 दिनांक 31.05.97 की कंडिका— 2 (6) (iii) में दिये गये निदेश को संशोधित करते हुए निदेश दिया जाता है कि निबंधन आवेदन के साथ हस्ताक्षरी सदस्यों से इस आशय का घोषणा पत्र भी प्राप्त किया जाय कि वे ऐसी या समान सेवा देने वाली इस अधिनियम या 1935 के अधिनियम के अन्तर्गत निबंधित किसी सोसाइटी के सदस्य नहीं है, साथ ही निबंधन पर विचार करते समय संतुष्ट हो लिया जाय कि उक्त घोषणा पत्र सही है और आवेदकों / हस्ताक्षरियों में एक परिवार से एक ही सदस्य है।
- 3. उपर्युक्त पत्रांक 4139 दिनांक 31.05.97 के परिशिष्ट 1 एवं परिशिष्ट 2 के अन्तर्गत निर्धारित कोड को और भी स्पष्ट करने हेतु उसे संशोधित एवं पुनर्निर्धारित किया जाता है। कृपया संलग्नस परिशिष्ट –1 एवं परिशिष्ट –2 में पुनर्निधारित कोड के अनुसार ही निबंधन संख्या दिया जाना सुनिश्चित किया जाय।



परिशिष्ट —1 निबंधन के प्रयोजनार्थ प्रमंडल/ जिला/ अंचल/ समिति आदि का कोड़ पुनर्निर्धारण

राज्य कोड़ प्रमंडल कोड़ जिला कोड़ अंचल कोड़ समिति का प्रकार कोड़ बिहार बी.आर. पटना 01 पटना सदर 01 पैक्स पी (P) छानापुर 02 लैम्पस एल (L) पटनासिटी 03 गृह निर्माण स.स. एक (H) बाढ़ 04 मत्स्यजीवी स.स. एल ए (F) मसोढ़ी 05 श्रमिक स.स. एल ए (LA) नालंदा 02 बिहार शरिफ 01 ट्रान्सपोर्ट स.स.इ टी (T)	निबंधन संख्या वर्ष
छानापुर 02 लैम्पस एल (L) पटनासिटी 03 गृह निर्माण स्र.सः एच (H) बाढ़ 04 मत्स्यजीवी स्र.सः एफ (F) मसोढ़ी 05 श्रमिक स्र.सः एल ए (LA) नालंदा 02 बिहार शरिफ 01 ट्रान्सपोर्ट स्र.सद्ध टी (T)	
पटनासिटी 03 गृह निर्माण स.स. एच (H) बाढ़ 04 मत्स्यजीवी स.स. एफ (F) मसोढ़ी 05 श्रमिक स.स. एल ए (LA) नालंदा 02 बिहार शरिफ 01 ट्रान्सपोर्ट स.सद्ध टी (T)	
बाढ़ 04 मॅंत्स्यजीवी स.स. एफ (F) मसोढ़ी 05 श्रमिक स.स. एल ए (LA) नालंदा 02 बिहार शरिफ 01 ट्रान्सपोर्ट स.सद्ध टी (T)	
मसोढ़ी 05 श्रमिक स.स. एल ए (LA) नालंदा 02 बिहार शरिफ 01 ट्रान्सपोर्ट स.सद्ध टी (T)	
नालंदा 02 बिहार शरिफ 01 ट्रान्सपोर्ट स.सद्ध टी (T)	
नालंदा 02 बिहार शरिफ 01 ट्रान्सपोर्ट स.सद्ध टी (T)	
हिलसा 02 महिला स.स. डब्लू ओ (\	NO)
भोजपुर 03 आरा 01 फल एवं सब्जी स _॰ स॰ एफ भी (F	
बक्सर 02 बुनकर स.स. डब्लू ई (W	/E)
चीनी मिल स _॰ स॰ एस (S)	
रोहतास 04 सासाराम 01 हरिजन स.स. एस.सी (S	C)
विक्रमगंज 02 दुग्ध उत्पादन स.स. एम. (M)	
भभुआ 03 व्यापार मंडल भी (V)	
मगध 02 गया 02 गया 01 के。सह.बैंक सीबी (CB))
शेरघाटी 02 अन्य ओटीएच	
(OTH)	
जहानाबाद 03 परिसंघ / संघ / राज्य एफइडी	
(FEGD)	
औरंगाबाद 02 औरंगाबाद 01 स्तरीय शहरी बैंक यूबी (ÚB)
नवादा 03 नवादा 03	
भागलपुर 03 भागलपुर 01 भागलपुर 01	
बांका 02	
नवगिष्ठया 03	
मुंगेर 02 मुंगेर 01	
जमुई 02	

1. 2.	3.	4.	5.	6. 02	7. लखिसराय	8. 03	9.	10.	11.	12
				02	शेखपुरा	04				
			बेगुसराय	03	बेगुसराय	01				
			खगड़िया	04	खगड़िया	04				
	संथालपरगना	04	_. दुमका	01	दुमका	01				
			देवधर	02	देवधर	01				
					जामताड़ा	02				
			गोोा	03	गोोा	01				
			साहेबगंज	04	साहेबगंज	01				
					पाकुड़	02				
	कोशी	05	सहरसा	01	सहरसा	01				
					सुपौल	02				
					बीरपुर	03				
			मधेपुरा	02	मधेपुरा					
			पूर्णिया	03	पूर्णिया					
			~							
	दरभंगा	06								
			दरभगा	01	दरभगा					
			^	20	बेनीपुर					
			मधुबनी	02	मधुबनी					
					झझारपुर > ० - ०					
				00	बनापट्टा 					
			समस्तापुर	03	समस्तापुर					
	ਰਿਹਟਟ	07	пашели	Ω1						
	1(148(1	O1	नुजयमग्रपुर	Οī	नुजायकरपुर पूर्वा	Οī				
	दरभंगा तिरहुत	06	मधेपुरा पूर्णिया कटिहार दरभंगा मधुबनी समस्तीपुर मुजफ्फरपुर	02 03 04 01 02 03	सुपौल बीरपुर मधेपुरा उदयकिशंनगंज पूर्णिया अरिया किशनगंज कटिहार दरभंगा बेनीपुर मधुबनी झंझारपुर बेनीपट्टी समस्तीपुर रोसड़ा दरसिंहसराय मुजफ्फरपुर पूर्वी					

1.	2.	3.	4.	5.	6.	7. मुजफ्फरपुर पः	8. 02	9.	10.	11.	12
				सीतामढ़ी	02	सीतामढ़ी	01				
				•		शिवहर	02				
						पुपरी	03				
				वैशाली	03	हाजीपुर	01				
				पूर्वी चम्पारण	04	मोतिहारी	01				
						शिकरहना	02				
				ч.	05	बेतिया	01				
				चम्पारण							
						बगहा	02				
		सारण	80	छपरा	01	छपरा	01				
				सीवान	02	सीवान	01				
				गोपालबंज	03	गोपालबंज	01				
		उत्तरी	09	हजारीबाग	01	हजारीबाग	01				
		छोटानागपुर									
						चतरा	02				
						कोड़रमा	03				
				गिरिडीह	02	गिरिडीह	01				
						बेरमो	02				
				धनबाद	03	धनबाद	01				
						चास	02				
		दक्षिणी छोटानागपुर	01	रॉची	01	राँची	01				
						खूँटी लोहरदग्गा	02				
							03				
				गुमला	02	गुमला	01				
						सिमडेगा	02				

1.	2.	3.	4.	5.	6.	7.	8.	9.	10.	11.	12
				सिंहभूम	03	चाईबासा	01				
						चक्रधरपुर	02				
						सरायकेला	03				
						जमशेदपुर	04				
						घाटशिला	05				
				पलामू	04	डाल्टेनगंज	01				
						लातेहार	02				
						गढ़वा	03				
						परिशि	도 - 2				

पाराशष्ट —2 निबंधन संख्या अंकित करने के मार्गदर्शन हेतु उदाहरण

			· ~ 3		=			
1.	किसी समिति की निबंधन संख्या इस प्रकार दर्ज होगी :	BR	00	00	00	XYZ	000	00
2.	यदि प्रमंडल पटना, जिला पटना, अंचल पटना सदर और समिति							
	पैक्स हो तथा वर्ष 1997 हो तो निबंधन संख्या इस प्रकार दर्ज							
	होगी:-	BR	01	01	01	Р	000	97
3.	यदि प्रमंडल पटना, जिला पटना और समिति जिला स्तरीय							
	के.सह. बैंक हो तथा वर्ष 1997 हो तो निबंधन संख्या इस प्रकार							
	दर्ज होगी :	BR	01	01	00	СВ	000	97
4.	यदि प्रमंडल स्तरीय किसी समिति का निबंधन किया जाना हो और							
	प्रमंडल दक्षिणी छोटानागपुर हो तो निबंधन संख्या इस प्रकार दर्ज							
	होगी:-	BR	10	O0	O0	OTH	000	00
5.	यदि मुख्यालय में परिसंघ/ संघ या राज्य स्तरीय समिति का							
	निबंधन किया जाना हो तो निबंधन संख्या इस प्रकार दर्ज होगा :	BR	00	O0	00	FED	000	00

•